
City of Rice Lake Common Council 
Meeting Agenda 

Tuesday, March 25, 2025 
7:00 pm 

City Hall Council Room, 30 East Eau Claire Street, Rice Lake, WI 54868 

The public may physically attend or access the meeting via TV (Charter 992; Mosaic 993), 
Internet live stream (https://tinyurl.com/yyl9rxbv), and/or radio (105.5 FM). Participants in one or 

more agenda items may attend in-person or virtually by: 

 
1. Copying and pasting into an internet browser  (Chrome is preferred) 

https://zoom.us/j/96159485695?pwd=ZjkwRVRtQWJDdVU1NUttTDVvMmo2UT09  
and/or 

2. Calling 1.312.626.6799 and entering this Meeting ID Number: 961 5948 5695 and Password: 666102 
 

1. Call to Order 

• Roll Call 

• Prayer – Bob Pittman, World Harvest 

• Pledge of Allegiance 

• Disclosure of conflict of interest by voting members regarding any item on the agenda 

2. Public Appearances (*) Persons wanting to speak under Public Appearances must sign-in at the 
podium by the Council Room entrance prior to the meeting being called to order per Council Procedural 
Rules Policy 

• Public Appearance Introductions (Mayor) 

 
3. Public Hearing 

 
4. Consent 

a. Minutes – March 11, 2025 Regular (Clerk) 
b. Licenses – Bartenders:  DeeAnn Robbins, Valerie Michaletz, Anthony Lebron, Jody Greiner, 

Devang Patel, Haley Paulus. (Clerk) 
c. Acceptance of Parcel 276-8004-05-000 from Barron County 
d. Authorization to Replace the Vacant Recreation Coordinator/Administrative Assistant Position 
e. Resolution 25-08 for the 2nd Saturday in May to be World Migratory Bird Day in the City of Rice 

Lake 
f. Street Closure Request – RL Aquafest – Aquafest Festival Grounds 
g. Approve Appointment of Deputy Clerk-Treasurer 
h. Resolution 25-09, A Preliminary Resolution Declaring Intent to Levy Special Assessments 

Under Municipal Police Power Pursuant to Wi Stat. 66.0703 & Set April 22, 2025 to Conduct a 
Public Hearing regarding the Proposed Assessments 

i. Mayoral Proclamation in Remembrance of Miharu Hiroshi Itoh  
 

5. Consideration 
a. 2025 Non-Represented Employee COLA  
 

6. Reports/Comments 

• Mayor/Council Comments - items not for discussion (Mayor/Council) 
 
7. Closed Session - Motion to convene into Closed Session pursuant to WI Stat. 19.85(1)(e) deliberating 

or negotiating of public properties, the investing of public funds, or conducting other specified public 
business, whenever competitive or bargaining reasons require a closed session and WI Stat 19.85(1)(f) 
considering financial, medical, social or personal histories or disciplinary data of specific persons, 
preliminary consideration of specific personnel problems or the investigation of charges against specific 
persons except where par. (b) applies which, if discussed in public, would be likely to have a substantial 
adverse effect upon the reputation of any person referred to in such histories or data, or involved in 
such problems or investigations. 

https://zoom.us/j/96159485695?pwd=ZjkwRVRtQWJDdVU1NUttTDVvMmo2UT09


a. National Guard Armory (CA) 
b. Data Sharing on City Website (CA) 
c. Approve Appointment of Deputy Clerk-Treasurer 
d. 2023-2024 Employment Agreement issues 

 
8. Open Session - Motion by reconvene to take any action resulting from the Closed Session. 

a. National Guard Armory (CA) 
b. Data Sharing on City Website (CA) 
c. Approve Appointment of Deputy Clerk-Treasurer 
d. 2023-2024 Employment Agreement issues 

 
9. Adjourn 

Harlan Dodge, Mayor 
 
(*) Appearances are limited to 3 minutes per person (less if there are numerous speakers on the same topic). City residents and City taxpayers 
may address the Council. Non-City residents may address the Common Council only with Council’s permission (or prior administrative permission 
granted by the City Clerk-Treasurer’s Office). Speakers are strongly encouraged to limit remarks to City of Rice Lake city government issues. The 
complete policy is available at www.ci.ricelake.wi.us or at the City Clerk-Treasurer’s Office. Any person who has a qualifying disability as defined 
by the American with Disabilities Act that requires the meeting or materials at the meeting to be in an accessible location or format must contact: 
Julie A. Kessler, City Clerk-Treasurer, 30 East Eau Claire Street, Rice Lake, (715) 234-7088 by 2:00 p.m. the Friday prior to the meeting so that 
any necessary arrangements can be made to accommodate each request.  
 
It is possible that members of and possibly a quorum of members of the governmental bodies of the municipality may be in attendance at the 
above- stated meeting to gather information – no action will be taken by any governmental body at the above stated meeting other than the 
governmental body specifically referenced to above in this notice. 



 

 

Regular Meeting – March 11, 2025 
 

The March 22, 2025 City of Rice Lake Common Council meeting was held in-person 
and virtually in the City Hall Council/Lakeshore Rooms.  Members Present:  Mayor 
Dodge, Councilmembers Westaby, Dirkes, Larson, Resac, Sookiayak, Hulback and 
Edwardsen.  Also present:  City Administrator Johnson and City Clerk-Treasurer 
Kessler.  Absent and excuses: Moffatt.  Mayor Dodge called the meeting to orders.  
Jake from World Harvest Church led the prayer, followed by the Pledge of Allegiance.  
Disclosure of conflict of interest by voting members regarding any item on the agenda:  
none.   
 
Public Appearance – Dan Lawler talked about the Armory purchase and felt this 
should be put to a referendum.   
 
Consent Agenda – Motion by Councilmember Edwardsen, second by Councilmember 
Resac, to approve the consent agenda as follows:   

• Minutes - Approve the minutes of the February 25, 2025 Regular Council 
Meeting as submitted. 

• Licenses - Approve the licenses as submitted. 

• Approve the bills as follows 
 Direct Debits  489,085.69 
 Prepaid  137,874.02 
 PCard   143,799.67 
 Vouchers Waiting 343,544.22 
 Total        $1,114,303.60 
Voting for:  Councilmembers Dirkes, Larson, Resac, Sookiayak, Hulback, 
Edwardsen, Westaby 
Voting against:  none 
Motion Carried 
 

Resolution 25-06, Authorizing The Partial Defeasance of The City of Rice Lake 
$3,600,000 General Obligation Promissory Notes, Series 2017 - Motion by 
Councilmember Resac, second by Councilmember Sookiayak, to approve Resolution 
25-06 as presented.   
 Voting for:  Councilmembers Resac, Sookiayak, Hulback, Edwardsen, Westaby, 
 Dirkes, Larson 
 Voting against:  none 
 Motion Carried 
 
Street Closure Requests – moved to future meetings. 
 
Resolution 25-05, Adopting the City of Rice Lake Comprehensive Outdoor 
Recreation Plan 2025-2029 – Motion by Councilmember Edwardsen, second by 
Councilmember Hulback, to pass Resolution 25-05 Adopting the City of Rice Lake 
2025-2029 CORP and to authorize the Mayor and Clerk-Treasurer to execute the 
necessary signatures. 

3



 

 

 Voting for:  Councilmembers Sookiayak, Hulback, Edwardsen, Westaby, Dirkes, 
 Larson and Resac 
 Voting against:  none 
 Motion Carried 
 
Resolution 25-07, Tax Increment District (TID) #3 Termination – Motion by 
Councilmember Resac, second by Councilmember Larson, to approve Resolution 25-07 
with noted corrections. 
 Voting for:  Councilmembers Hulback, Edwardsen, Westaby, Dirkes, Larson, 
 Resac and Sookiayak 
 Voting against:  none 
 Motion Carried 
 
Abatement of Oil Site – Presentation and questions from CSD Anderson and Ryan 
Shimko, SEH.  Motion by Councilmember Larson, second by Councilmember 
Edwardsen, to approve the City eliminate waste oil collection with the City and Hire SEH 
to perform the Tank System Site Assessment and Remedial Action Documentation and 
the Case Closure Request with an estimated cost of $36,000 and approve the 
Engineers Supplemental Letter Agreement as present and direct the Mayor to sign 
such. 
 Voting for:  Councilmembers Edwardsen, Westaby, Dirkes, Larson, Resac, 
 Sookiayak and Hulback 
 Voting against:  none 
 Motion Carried 
 
Appearance of Downtown Bridge – Motion by Councilmember Sookiayak, second by 
Councilmember Resac, for City Administrator Johnson and CSD Anderson along with 
SEH, look into what can be done, costs of those options and how it can be paid for. 
 Voting for:  Councilmembers Westaby, Dirkes, Larson, Resac, Sookiayak, 
 Hulback and Edwardsen 
 Voting against:  none 
 Motion Carried 
 
Reports/Comments – Councilmember Edwardsen suggested onboarding and training 
for new councilmembers.  Sookiayak added for them to hear from the Department 
Heads.  Sookiayak provided congratulations for the Rice Lake Warrior Gymnastics 
championship and the Girls Basketball going to state.  Dirkes added the Robotics team 
and Archery team who will also be going to state. 
 
Motion by Councilmember Sookiayak, second by Councilmember Resac, to convene 
into Closed Session pursuant to WI Stat. 19.85(1)(e) deliberating or negotiating of public 
properties, the investing of public funds, or conducting other specified public business, 
whenever competitive or bargaining reasons require a closed session and WI Stat 
19.85(1)(f) considering financial, medical, social or personal histories or disciplinary 
data of specific persons, preliminary consideration of specific personnel problems or the 
investigation of charges against specific persons except where par. (b) applies which, if 

4



 

 

discussed in public, would be likely to have a substantial adverse effect upon the 
reputation of any person referred to in such histories or data, or involved in such 
problems or investigations and WI Stat 19.85(1)(c) considering employment, promotion, 
compensation or performance evaluation data of any public employee over which the 
governmental body has jurisdiction or exercises responsibility. 

a. National Guard Armory (CA) 
b. Property Inquiry (CA) 
c. Data Sharing on City Website (CA) 
d. Police Office Coordinator Compensation Adjustment (PD/PNC) 

 Voting for:  Councilmembers Dirkes, Larson, Resac, Sookiayak, Hulback, 
 Edwardsen and Westaby 
 Voting against:  none 
 Motion Carried 
 
Motion by Councilmember Edwardsen, second by Councilmember Resac, to reconvene 
into open session to take action resulting from the Closed Session. 
 Voting for:  all 
 Voting against:  none 
 Motion Carried 
 
There were no public or press in attendance. 
 
National Guard Armory – Motion by Councilmember Larson, second by 
Councilmember Edwardsen, to direct City Administrator Johnson to pursue the 
purchase of the property and explore partnering opportunities for its development 
including continued talks with RLHA and complete a low level feasibility study of the 
proposed usages via SEH for under $3,000/ 
 Voting for:  Councilmembers Larson, Resac, Sookiayak, Hulback, Edwardsen, 
 Westaby and Dirkes 
 Voting against:  none 
 Motion Carried 
 
Property Inquiry – Motion by Councilmember Sookiayak, second by Councilmember 
Westaby, to have City Administrator Johnson continue fact-finding and have 
conversations with the liquidator and identified developers for the property and research 
the financial feasibility of offering assistance in the development of the property.   
 Voting for:  Councilmembers Resac, Sookiayak, Hulback, Edwardsen, Westaby, 
 Dirkes and Larson 
 Voting against:  none 
 Motion Carried 
 
Police Office Coordinator Adjustment – Motion by Councilmember Sookiayak, 
second by Councilmember Resac, to approve a base wade increase for the Police 
Office Coordinator position from $24.43 to $27.43 with any additional COLA increase for 
2025 to be added and retroactive to January 1, 2025.   
 Voting for:  Councilmembers Sookiayak, Hulback, Edwardsen, Westaby, Dirkes, 
 Larson and Resac 

5



 

 

 Voting against:  none 
 Motion Carried 
 
Motion by Councilmember Resac, second by Councilmember Sookiayak, to adjourn the 
meeting. 
 Voting for:  all 
 Voting against:  none 
 Motion Carried 
 

_________________________ 
Harlan E. Dodge, Mayor 

_________________________ 
Julie A. Kessler, WCMC 
City Clerk-Treasurer 

6



TO: Mayor & Common Council   Agenda No. 4-C 
FOR: Common Council Meeting of March 25, 2025   
FROM: James Anderson, CSD Director 

RE: Acceptance of Parcel # 276-8004-05-000 From Barron County  
 
A. Issue: 
To accept a narrow parcel of land that is within the current road right of way of South Wisconsin Ave. 
as part of the 2021 Tax Deed foreclosure process. 

 
B. Background: 
Back in the early 2000’s when the Decker annexation was approved, the City also annexed the 
bordering right of way of South Wisconsin Ave. The parcel that is in question today, borders what is 
commonly known as the “Raether Development”. This 33’ wide parcel starts 405’ South of 19th Ave. 
running southward to the south side of Cedarcrest Drive. This is also identified by the dark green 
highlight on page 2 of attachment A.  
 
Unfortunately, when the property was sold, the former property line went to the center of the R/O/W 
and the new Certified Survey Map (CSM) only went up to the R/O/W line. This left a 33’ wide sliver of 
property within the R/O/W that had no parent parcel, nor was it deeded to the City of Rice Lake. 
 
Barron County Treasurer Samantha Sommerfeld explained it this way in her letter to the city. 
 
In the past some Certified Survey Maps mistakenly didn’t go to the center of the road. This would create sections of 
road right of way that would remain with the parent parcel, in terms of ownership. In this case, everything was sold 
off except the road right of way, so we didn’t have a parent parcel to keep it attached to. Today, Certified Survey 
Maps are reviewed (at least the Towns are reviewed by Barron County Land Services) so these types of issues are 
no longer a common occurrence. In 2021 we added these parcels to the assessment/tax roll with the last known 
owners listed. With no response or willingness to clean this up from them, this is the County’s last option to do so. 

 
  The letter from Barron County Treasurer in its entirety is shown on page 1 of attachment A. 
 
C. Analysis: 
Barron County is willing to turn this parcel back over to the City for a small fee of $30.00. This fee is 
only a portion of what it would cost for the City to fix this on their own.   
 

CSD has reviewed the letter from Barron County Treasurer, has verified that parcel (276-8004-05-000) 
which is highlighted in dark green on page 2, of attachment A lies within the R/O/W of S. Wisconsin Ave. 
and should be turned over to the City of Rice Lake as we currently maintain it, and is identified on the 
state road reports as being controlled by the City of Rice Lake. 

 
D. Options: 
1. Accept parcel (276-8004-05-000) from Barron County and agree to pay the $30.00 deed 
recording fee. 
2. Disapprove all or part of the brief and direct Department Head in alternative direction. 

 

E. Recommendation: 
Recommendation is Option #1  

 

7



To: Town of Rice Lake & City of Rice Lake 

From: Samantha Sommerfeld, Barron County Treasurer 

Re: Future Tax Deed Parcels – Road Right of Way 

Date: February 26, 2025 

There is a section of road right of way in your municipality that is part of the 2021 In-
Rem Tax Deed foreclosure process.  

See attached map – 038-3200-01-000 / 276-8004-05-000 

The yellow portion is in the Town of Rice Lake. The Blue portion is in the City of Rice 
Lake. 

Normally tax deed properties are offered to the municipality first (at a cost established by 
County Ordinance) and then offered to the general public on the online auction. This 
situation is a little unique since it is road right of way only. I am planning on suggesting 
to the Barron County Executive Committee that we take ownership of these parcels and 
deed them to the municipality at the cost of the deed recording ($30). Can you let your 
board members know about this? Let me know if they agree that the municipality taking 
ownership of this road right of way is best. I don’t see any reason why the county should 
retain ownership. Also, confirm that the municipality is willing to pay the $30 deed 
recording fee. The deed recording would happen around May/June 2025. 
If anyone asks why these exist to begin with, here is an explanation: In the past some 
Certified Survey Maps mistakenly didn’t go to the center of the road. This would create 
sections of road right of way that would remain with the parent parcel, in terms of 
ownership. In this case, everything was sold off except the road right of way, so we 
didn’t have a parent parcel to keep it attached to. Today, Certified Survey Maps are 
reviewed (at least the Towns are reviewed by Barron County Land Services) so these 
types of issues are no longer a common occurrence. In 2021 we added these parcels to the 
assessment/tax roll with the last known owners listed. With no response or willingness to 
clean this up from them, this is the County’s last option to do so. 

Thank you for your time and consideration. 

Samantha Sommerfeld 

Barron County Treasurer 

BARRON COUNTY  
Samantha J Sommerfeld, Treasurer 335 E Monroe Ave Rm 2412 
Carol Rockow, Chief Deputy Barron WI 54812-1478  
Chasta Udelhofen, Real Property Lister Phone: 715.537.6280 Fax: 715.537.6277 

Attachment A

8



100 m

400 ft

9
8
1
.
6
9

1
2
-
1

L
1
 
C
3
8
-
4
7

0
3
8
-
2
9
0
0
-
0
8
-
0
0
0

5
7
4
.
7
5

9
8
1
.
6
9

3
4

320.64

3
6
5
.
3
2

36
5.

32

10
1.
18

 102.

10
1.
26
 

80

15-4
PA C26-98

038-2900-15-010

15-5
PB C26-98

038-2900-15-001

259

15-6
PC 026-98

038-2900-15-020

27.66

3
8
4 
8
4

16-4

193
.90

16-5

OL1 041-143

038-2900-15-000

780.29

650.26

78023

29

15-3
L2 C41-143

038-2900-15-030

1
5
1
 

5
3 118.31

2
8
1
.
2
0

1
5
-
3

L
1

 04
1
-
1
4
3

03
8-
29
00
-1
6-
00
0

1
6
4
.
2
9

14
6-
23

76
9.
01

198.06

159 9
5

74.07

133.57

1
9
 3
/
4 
S
T

86.47 
56.95790.51

FOTLUA

2-5 038-3200-01-000

752.78

5-3

MO3 7614
L2 C16-103

5-1
OS 7342

8004-23-000

353.30

6
.
3
2

740.55

87
9.
41

2-4

36
5.
52

3
6
5
.
5

382,37
66

333.06

2-3
L1 C16-99

038-3200-03-001
C
E
D
A
R
C
R
E
S
T
 

D
R

4
9 
4
5
9

32

2-1
L1 C45-3

276-8004-06-000

284.7

295.23
545.72

545.76

10.0434.19
林

P
T
2
7
6
-
0
0
4
-
2
2

8
-
4

202.47

8-5
3-6

L5 C29-103
276-8004-40-000

479.30

3
8
1
.
7
6

405.43

V
A
V
I
A
 

D
R

211.15 106.91,46
90.191

251.
03 19

4.
70

3-12

278-8004-05-000

1
5 
5
4

 
S
T
S
W
I
S
C
O
N
S
I
N

 
A
V

163.98
1
3
7
6
3

102.19 112.91

1
9
4
.
0
0

5
.
5
4

255.00

3.14

423.70

534

Attachment A

9



TO: Mayor & Common Council           Agenda No. 4-D 
FOR: Common Council Meeting of March 25, 2025   
FROM: James Anderson, CSD Director 
RE: Authorization to Replace the Vacant Recreation Coordinator/Administrative Assistant Position  

 

A. Issue: 

To authorize the CSD to hire the vacant Recreation Coordinator/Administrative Assistant Position. 

 
B. Background: 
On November 14, 2023 Item 4-E, Council approved the position description and authorized filling the 
Recreation Coordinator/Admin. Assistant position due to the vacancy that was created by Jordan Grilley having 
been promoted from the Recreation Coordinator/Admin. Assistant position to the Park Foreman/Forester 
position.  
 
Unfortunately, the person selected to fill the Recreation Coordinator/Admin. Assistant position did not make it 
through the probation period and was released on November 1, 2024. This position was temporarily filled by our 
6-month winter seasonal worker, Garrett Borgan, who had originally applied for the position. Mr. Borgan has 
been filling the position as Recreation Coordinator/Admin. Assistant since November 6, 2024, and by policy, 
temporary positions can only be filled for a term of up to 6-months. 

 
C. Analysis: 

At this time the CSD is asking for the authorization to fill the vacant Recreation Coordinator/Admin. Assistant 
position and to approve the position description as shown in attachment A. Only minor changes have been 
made to the position description such as the date, removal of the IECM chart, removal of the requirement to 
plow snow, along with the correction of a few grammar errors since it was last approved by Council in 
November of 2023.  

 

The removal of the requirement to plow snow was needed in order to attract multiple candidates for this type 
of administrative position. This previous requirement prevented many qualified candidates from applying in 
2023, and with the Council later approving an additional 6-month (winter) seasonal position during the 2024 
budget, it is no longer a requirement for the Recreation Coordinator/Admin. Assistant position to plow snow. 
However, if the candidate that is chosen is able and willing to be trained, CSD can use this position as a 
backup for plowing parking lots/sidewalks with non-CDL equipment. 

 

Being that the current state of the IECM is seriously flawed and has not been updated in almost six years, I am 
suggesting to set the base pay at the same rate as the previous employee. That base pay which was approved 
by Council was set at $24.86 per hour. Therefore, in order to attract the right candidate with these qualifications, it 
is my recommendation that this position be compensated at the same wage of the previous incumbent at $24.86 
per hour plus any COLA increases approved by Council for 2025. This position is a FLSA position and does 
receive overtime pay for hours worked in excess of 40 hours.     

 

The position provides supervision to several part-time recreation supervisors, backup to the Office Coordinator, 
and provides admin for the Park Board. 

 

In order to expedite the long process of hiring for this position, it is requested to advertise both internally and 
externally simultaneously. This will not only expedite the process; it will ensure the City gets the best qualified 
candidate. 

 

D. Options: 

1. Approve filling the vacant Recreation Coordinator/Admin. Assistant position, approve the position 
description as shown in attachment A, set the base wage at $24.86 plus any COLA increases approved by 
Council for 2025, and simultaneously advertise for the position both internally and externally.  

2. Disapprove all or part of the brief and direct Department Head in alternative direction. 
 

E. Recommendation: 

        Recommendation is Option #1  

10



CITY OF RICE LAKE, WISCONSIN 

POSITION DESCRIPTION 

Recreation Coordinator/Administrative Assistant 

(Regular Full-Time) 

Department: Community Services Department Position #: 55200-5 

Location: Community Services Facility Union: NR 

Immediate Supervisor: Community Services Director Revision Date: MarchNov. 20253 

This job description does not constitute an employment agreement between the employer and employee and is subject 

to change by the employer as the needs of the employer and requirements of the job change. 

I. General Purpose. Performs a variety of complex professional and administrative work in planning, developing, scheduling,

coordinating and implementing year-round, city-wide recreation programs. Performs a variety of routine and complex clerical,

secretarial, administrative and technical work such as payroll, invoicing, grave sales, weed and long grass complaints,

GIS/mapping, preparation of studies and reports, and keeping of official records. This position provides support to the

Community Services Department Parks Foreman, Office Coordinator, and staff, also assists in the administration of the

standard operating policies and procedures of the department. Recreation Coordinator is expected to work 28 hours per

week on average in the capacity of recreation and 12 hours per week on average in the capacity of Administrative Assistant. This

position receives administrative direction from the Community Services Director or duly appointed personnel.

II. Essential Duties & Responsibilities. The duties listed below are intended only as illustrations of the various types of

work that may be performed. The omission of specific statements of duties does not exclude them from the position if the

work is similar, related or a logical assignment to the position.

A. Illustrative Listing.

Position Specific Duties

1. Assists Director with:

a. assuring assigned areas of responsibility are performed within budget; performs cost control activities;

monitors revenues and expenditures in assigned area to assure sound fiscal control; prepares annual

budget requests; assures effective and efficient use of budgeted funds, personnel, materials, facilities,

and time.

b. development of short and long rangeshort- and long-range plans; gathers, interprets, and prepares data

for studies, reports and recommendations, assuring that assigned areas of responsibility are performed

within budget; performs cost control activities; monitors revenues and expenditures in assigned area to

assure sound fiscal control.

c. development and implementation of policies, procedures and standards for efficient and effective

operation and maintenance of recreation operations. Assures compliance with established policies and

procedures.

d. maintaining and implementing a current parks and recreation master plan.

e. management and supervision of assigned operations to achieve goals within available resources

f. ordering all new and replacement equipment.

g. aids the Director with preparation of an annual budget.

h. preparation of cost estimates to plan and provide for improvements in the department facilities.

i. research grant programs and grant application preparation as well as administration.

2. Coordinates:

a. department activities with other departments and agencies as needed.

b. recreation programs with other city departments, and outside organizations such as the school districts

and various community-based organizations.

c. various physical and cultural activities throughout the year with a thorough knowledge of the rules,

regulations and equipment used in assigned program areas, such as a variety of athletic activities,

and cultural enrichment materials.

3. Determines and evaluates work procedures, prepares work schedules, workloads, staff assignments and expedites

workflow; studies and standardizes procedures to improve efficiency and effectiveness of operations.

4. Investigates and follows-up on citizen requests for service, complaints, and requests for information.

5. Issues written and oral instructions; assigns duties and examines work for exactness, neatness, and conformance

to policies and procedures.

6. Maintains

a. liaison with other departments as well as state, local and other public officials and local athletic and civic

organizations.

b. recreation portion of City’s website.

7. Plans, coordinates, schedules, and directs a diversified year-round, city-wide recreation program including the

Attachment A

11



management of the open gym program, various athletic fields, skating rinks, parks and open spaces. 

8. Prepares: 

 a.  studies, reports and related information for decision-making purposes and maintains operating 

records.  

b. recommendations regarding proposals for programs, grants, services, budget, equipment, etc. 

9. Promotes interest in the park’s recreational programs through publicity, joint program brochures with 

various community groups, and public contacts. 

10. Provides: 

a. leadership and direction in the development of short and long rangeshort- and long-range recreational 
activities. 

b. technical assistance including GIS/mapping, for the planning of new parks, playgrounds additions.  

11. Reviews program areas, implements changes or new programs to meet recreational needs of the community. 

12. Trains, motivates and evaluates assigned staff; reviews progress and directs changes as needed. 

 
General Duties 

1. Acts as custodian of departmental documents and records. Establishes and maintains filing systems. 

2. Answers letters of inquiry and talks with visitors; confers with public and civic organizations to inform the public 

of policies, procedures and the availability of facilities for public use. 

3. Assists with: 

a.   conduct of operations to achieve goals within available resources. 

b.   other department staff in performing duties; adjusts errors and complaints according to existing procedures. 

c. development of notices, brochures, newsletters, media releases and articles and other informational materials 

about programs and services. 

d.   maintaining the general safety of department employees through assessments of working conditions. 

e.   procurement of department materials and supplies. 

f. scheduling and related items of public facilities in regard to established policy. 

4. Communicates official plans, policies and procedures to the public. 

5. Composes, inputs, and edits a variety of correspondence, reports, memoranda, and other material requiring judgment as 

to content, accuracy, and completeness. 

6. Gathers, interprets, and prepares data for studies, reports and recommendations for supervisor’s 

7. Makes presentations (when required) to supervisors, council, boards, commissions, civic groups and the general public. 

8. Performs 

a. or assists subordinates in performing duties; adjusts errors and complaints.  Maintains harmony 

among workers and resolves grievances. 

b. routine clerical and administrative work in answering phones, receiving the public and providing 

customer assistance, cashiering, data processing and bookkeeping. Answers in-coming calls and 

routes callers or provides information as required. 

c.    Plows snow in city parks and cemeteries as required. 

9.   Prepares periodic financial, statistical or operations reports, as assigned. 

10.  Provides: 

a. public records and information to citizens, civic groups, the media and other agencies as requested.  

b.    professional and technical advice to supervisors. 

c. administrative assistance in meeting management, assembles background materials, prepares agendas; 

records actions and distribution of materials, as required. 

11.  Serves as: 

a. back-up to Park Foreman, Office Coordinator and other department positions as directed. 

b. cashier, including receipting of payments and various other payments, and posting monies to appropriate 
accounts. 

c. custodian of departmental documents and records. Establishes and maintains filing systems, control records 
and indexes using moderate independent judgment. 

d. notary public (must be obtained within six months of employment). 

 
12.  Performs other duties, as assigned. 

  
III. Necessary Knowledge, Skills and Abilities. 

1. Working knowledge of: 

a.   accounting principles and practices 

b.   community recreation needs and resources 

c. computers and electronic data processing equipment/software including advanced skills with 

Word, intermediate skills with Excel, working knowledge of GPS/GIS Systems, along with other 

Attachment A

12



specialized municipal software 

d.   defensive driving practices 

e.   equipment and facilities required in a comprehensive park and recreation program 

f. hazards and safety precautions common to department equipment 

g.   principles and practices of modern parks and recreation programs 

h.   principles and practices of maintenance, and use of public buildings and park facilities 

i. principles and practices of a modern office environment, work organization and supervision 

j. state and local traffic laws 

2. Skill in proper and safe operation of: 

a.   personal computers including word processing, data base, spreadsheet, e-mail and scanning software; 

calculator; phone; copy machine; fax machine; and other standard office equipment 

b.   park equipment, facilities, materials, methods and procedures used in maintenance of recreation activities 

3. Ability to: 

a. carry out assigned projects to their completion 

b. communicate effectively, orally and in writing, with employees, consultants, other governmental agency 

representatives, City officials and the public 

c.  conduct necessary research and compile comprehensive reports 

d. coordinate, analyze, and utilize a variety of reports and records 

e. effectively meet and deal with the public 

f. establish and maintain effective working relationships with employees, supervisors, other agencies, 

vendors and the public 

g. follow instructions, both oral and written 

h. operate personal computer, including word processing software; calculator; copy and fax machine; phone; 

mobile or portable radio, automobile 

i. maintain effective preventive maintenance programs, policies and procedures 

j. maintain effective accounting procedures 

k. perform arithmetic computations accurately and quickly 

l.  plan, organize and assign personnel and resources, and monitor outcome to achieve desired goals 

m.   plan, organize, coordinate and implement a comprehensive community park and recreation program 

n. research and create policies, ordinances, memorandums, etc. 

o. speak, read and write the English language 

p. transmit written and oral instructions 

q. understand and carry out written and oral instructions in a clear and concise manner 

r. work independently and complete daily activities according to work schedule 

s. work safely 

t. work under pressure, in stressful situations and/or with frequent interruptions 

u.    operate pickup snow plow, snow blower, broom etc. 
 

IV. Special Requirements. 

1. United States citizen. 

2. Eighteen (18) years of age or older at date of appointment. 

3. Valid Wisconsin Driver’s License, without record of suspension or revocation for major offence in any state for the past 
seven (7) years – possess, or ability to obtain by date of appointment and maintain throughout employment. 

4. Felony convictions or disqualifying criminal history – none within the past seven (7) years. 

5. Bondable. 

6. Notary Public Certification – possess or ability to obtain within six (6) months of date of appointment. 

5. Willing to furnish information for a comprehensive background check. 

6. Remain in conformance with Federal requirements and City policies intended to prevent the misuse of alcohol and use 

of controlled substances. 

 
V. Internal Equity Compensation Model Policy.  

A. The Internal Equity Compensation Model (IECM) compares positions within the City for the purpose of ensuring 
equitable pay for every position. The IECM includes job factors that can be objectively measured, are shared across 
departments and defined as the desire qualifications necessary for a position. Below are the IECM job factors for this 
position. 
B. Any equivalent combination of education and progressively responsible experience, with additional work experience 
substituting for the required education on a year for year basis, may fulfill the requirements for education. 

 

Attachment A

13



 
 

 

 

Approval:          
 Mayor  Date   City Clerk-Treasurer  Date 

Job Factor Definition
Position 

Points
Supervision Number of Subordinate positions receiving direction or 

oversite from this position
2.3

Education Minimum level of education necessary for position to perform 
satisfactorily

16

Experience Minimum number of years in a related field required for the 
position

3

Proficiency Minimum number of years to becomecompetent in the 
position, including initial training and certification 
requirements

2

Continuing
Education

Minimum number of annual hours required by the 
department, State for Federal agencies

20

Working 
Conditions

Wisconsin Worker's Compensation unadjusted rate 3.2

Annual Hours 
Over 2080

Annual hours the position is scheduled to work over 2,080, if 
any.

0

Internal Equity Compensation Model Policy

Attachment A

14



CITY OF RICE LAKE, WISCONSIN Functional 
Physical/Environmental Evaluation  

Recreation Coordinator/Administrative Assistant 

 
An evaluation by a physician and/or the employer in accordance with this Functional Physical/Environmental Evaluation will be 

required of the applicant following the offer and acceptance of a job offer.  The job offer will be contingent upon the successful 

completion of these evaluations and determination that a reasonable accommodation (if necessary) can be made. 

 
Functional Physical/Environmental Evaluation of Position 

 
During a typical work w eek, this position is reasonably 

expected to perform the following tasks and/or be exposed to 

the following occurrences at the frequency indicated: 

Definitions 

Seldom - hardly ever 

Occasional - a few times per month 

Frequent - a few times per w eek 

Regular - a few times per day or more 

Physician:  In this column, please note employee's limitations , if any, 

Task / Occurrence Frequency   to perform task s or work with exposures listed. 

Sit  Regular  
Stand/Walk Regular  
Pus h/Pull Seldom  
Twist/Bend Regular  
Climb/Reach Regular  
Balance Seldom  
Craw l/Kneel Seldom  
Gras p/Grip Regular  
Repetitive Movements Regular  
Ability to lift:   
 5-25 pounds Regular  
 26-50 pounds Regular  
 51-100 pounds Occasional  
 Over 100 pounds Seldom  
Exposure to:   
 Loud Noise (e.g. heavy traffic, large 

contractor equipment) 

 
Frequent 

 

 Extreme weather Frequent  
 Extreme heat/cold (non-weather) Frequent  
 Wet/humid conditions (non-weather) Frequent  
 High/precarious places Seldom  
 Confined spaces Seldom  
 Fumes/airborne particles Occasional  
 Toxic/caustic chemicals Seldom  
 Moving mechanical parts/moving vehicles Occasional  
 Explosives Seldom  
 Bio-hazards Seldom  
 Electrical shock Seldom  
 Radiation Seldom  
 Vibration Seldom  
 Life threatening situations Seldom  
 Wear Protective Clothing/Equipment Seldom  
 Critical Incident Stress Situations Seldom  

 
Vision  Capability 

Requirement of 

Position 

Physician:  In this  column,  please  note  employee has 

the vision capability. 

Close  Vision 

(clear  vision  at 20 inches  or less) 

yes  
Distance Vision 

(clear  vision  at 20 feet or more) 

yes  
Color  Vision 

(ability  to identify  and distinguish colors) 

yes  
Peripheral Vision 

(ability  to observe  an area  that can be seen  up 

and down  or to the left and right  while  eyes  are 

fixed  on a given  point  

yes  

Depth  Perception 

(three-dimensional vision,  ability  to judge 

distance and  spatial  relationships) 

yes  

Ability  to Adjust  Focus 

(ability  to adjust  the eye to bring  an object  into 

sharp  focus) 

yes  

 

Attachment A

15



Item 4E 

To:   Mayor and Common Council 
From:  Jordan Grilley; Greenspace Foreman/Forester Community Services Department 
For:  Common Council Meeting of March 25th, 2025 
Subject: Approval of Resolution 25-08 stating that the second Saturday in May will be know as   
  World Migratory Bird Day in the City of Rice Lake 
 

1. Background: 
In 2016, the City of Rice Lake was awarded the status of a Wisconsin “Bird City” by the 
Milwaukee Audubon Society. This award acknowledges a community’s efforts in the support of 
bird conservation. A yearly renewal process is required to maintain the status, and one of the 
criteria is to pass a resolution (Attachment A) every two years recognizing World Migratory Bird 
Day. The last resolution was passed by the Common Council on February 14th, 2023. 
 

2. Issue: 
The task before the Council tonight is to consider passing resolution 25-08.  
 

3. Analysis:  
This resolution will complete the renewal process for the City of Rice Lake and allow us to 
maintain “Bird City” status for 2025. Department staff have also planned an event 
acknowledging WMBD on May 10th. 
 

4. Options: 
A. To pass resolution 25-08 recognizing the second Saturday in May as World Migratory Bird Day 
in the City of Rice Lake completing the 2025 “Bird City” application process. 
 
B. To reject resolution 25-08 and not recognize the second Saturday in May as World Migratory 
Bird Day in the City of Rice Lake not allowing us to complete the 2025 “Bird City” application 
process. 
 
C. Any other actions the Common Council deem appropriate. 
 

5. Recommendation: 
It is the recommendation of the Community Services Department to choose option A, and pass 
resolution 25-08 and recognize the second Saturday in May as World Migratory Bird Day in the 
City of Rice Lake; completing the 2025 “Bird City” application process. 
 

16



Attachment A 

Resolution 25-08 
World Migratory Bird Day – City of Rice Lake 

 
 

Whereas, migratory birds are some of the most beautiful and easily observed wildlife that share our 
communities, and 
 
Whereas, many citizens recognize and welcome migratory songbirds as symbolic harbingers of spring, and  
 
Whereas, these migrant species also play an important economic role in our community, controlling insect 
pests and generating millions in recreational dollars statewide, and 
 
Whereas, migratory birds and their habitats are declining throughout the Americas, facing a growing 
number of threats on their migration routes and in both their summer and winter homes, and 
 
Whereas, public awareness and concern are crucial components of migratory bird conservation, and 
 
Whereas, citizens enthusiastic about birds, informed about the threats they face, and empowered to help 
address those threats can directly contribute to maintaining health bird populations, and 
 
Whereas, since 1993 World Migratory Bird Day (formerly International Migratory Bird Day) has become a 
primary vehicle for focusing public attention on the nearly 350 species that travel between nesting habitats 
in our communities and throughout North America and their wintering grounds in South and Central 
America, Mexico, the Caribbean, and the southern U.S., and 
 
Whereas, hundreds of thousands of people will observe WMBD, gathering in town squares, community 
centers, schools, parks, nature centers, and wildlife refuges to learn about birds, take action to conserve 
them, and simply to have fun, and 
 
Whereas, while WMBD officially is held each year on the second Saturday in May, its observance is not 
limited to a single day, and planners are encouraged to schedule activities on the dates best suited to the 
presence of both migrants and celebrants, and  
 
Whereas, WMBD is not only a day to foster appreciation for wild birds and to celebrate and support 
migratory bird conservation, but also a call to action, 
 
NOW THEREFORE I, Harlan E. Dodge, as Mayor of the City of Rice Lake, Wisconsin, do hereby proclaim, the 
second Saturday in May will henceforth be known as World Migratory Bird Day in the City of Rice Lake, and 
I urge all citizens to celebrate this observance and to support efforts to protect and conserve migratory 
birds and their habitats in our community and the world at large. 
 
Adopted this 25th day of March, 2025. 

 
 

____________________________ 
Harlan E. Dodge, Mayor 

Attest: 
______________________________ 
Julie A. Kessler, City Clerk-Treasurer  

17



Memo To:  Mayor and Council 

From:  Clerk-Treasurer Kessler Item 4-c 

Date:  March 20, 2025 

Subject:  Street Use Permits – 2025 Rice Lake Aquafest – June 4-8, 2025 

cc:  Anne Gallagher via email:  anneg@chibardun.net 

Issue 

The Aquafest Committee has submitted a street use request for their main event to be on Main Street for 

Council consideration.  The application is available for review in the City Clerk-Treasurer’s Office. 

Background 

The 2025 Aquafest will not have the use of the Besse property parking lot this year so they are 

requesting to move their venue to Main Street and block off from Messenger St to Water St.  They 

have submitted the signed petition by the adjacent property owners.   

Department Head Comments:  none 

The Street Use Ordinance requires a petition to be signed by 75% of the persons responsible for water 

utility accounts along the effected area, a signed release of liability for these activities and the applicant(s) 

must provide the city with a certificate of insurance.  The ordinance also states "If the application is for an 

event involving the sale or promotion of commercial products or services, the application shall be 

accompanied by a deposit of one hundred dollars ($100) which shall demonstrate the good faith of the 

applicant and his/her agreement to pay within twenty (20) days of billing all city costs incurred by the 

occasion of the event.  The applicant shall be required to furnish a performance bond prior to being granted 

the permit." 

If this section is interpreted to apply to the Aquafest, then the organization would be required to deposit 

$100 and pay any and all city costs within 20 days of the event.  In previous years, Council has waived this 

section of the code for Aquafest activities. 

For reference purposes, below are the prior two years’ Council Minutes regarding the Aquafest street use 

permits. 

April 25, 2023 – Part of the consent agenda:  To approve all street use permits, as submitted; waive $100 

deposit for all permits, performance bond, all street use application fees for each organization & all street 

use application petitions; require certificate of insurance, signed release of liability, payment of any/all 'non 

in-kind' charges within 20 days of invoice date & Aquafest Committee sign off on the Traffic Control Plan 

(TCP) to insure the plan will be followed; and absorb City's in-kind services and not bill the responsible 

organization. 

May 14, 2024 -to approve all street use permits, as submitted; waive $100 deposit for all permits, performance bond, 

all street use application fees for each organization & all street use application petitions; require certificate of 

insurance, signed release of liability, payment of any/all 'non in-kind' charges within 20 days of invoice date & 

Aquafest Committee sign off on the Traffic Control Plan (TCP) to insure the plan will be followed; and absorb 

City's in-kind services and not bill the responsible organization. 

Historically, the City has provided many in-kind services hours, equipment, etc. at no charge to Aquafest. 

While the Aquafest Committee takes measures to keep the City’s expense as low as possible, it takes a 

significant amount of City resources to hold the festival. 

The 2025 estimated in-kind costs for this permit alone are $3,002.50 and as in the past, Council will need 

to consider if the in-kind services will be billed out to the responsible organization or be absorbed by the 

City.  Over the last few years, Aquafest has been responsible for reimbursing the City for ‘non in-kind’ 

supplemental law enforcement services provided by outside sources, which are not included in the above 

18



summary ($1,500-$2,500/yr). 

The Common Council has required street use permit fees in some years, while waiving the fees in other 

years. The governing body may consider requiring a combined $500 street use fee based on the blocks 

requested for the permits. While the $500 may not be significant in respect to the City’s in-kind costs, it falls 

within the City’s fee schedule.  

Options 

Below, please find issues (there may be more) which need to be address by Council on the above street 

use: 

A. Approve / disapprove street use permit as submitted

B. Require / waive the $100 deposit for the permits

C. Require / waive the certificate of insurance

D. Require / waive the signed release of liability

E. Require / waive the performance bond

F. Require / waive any / all street use application fees for each organization

G. Direct staff to bill out the City's in-kind services to the responsible organization OR to absorb the

city's in-kind services and not bill the responsible organization

H. Require payment of any / all ‘non in-kind’ charges within 20 days of invoice date.

I. Require / not require the Aquafest Committee sign off on the Traffic Control Plan (TCP) to insure

the plan will be followed.

As always, Council has the option to take any other action Council desires. 

Recommendation 

Approve 

street use permit, as submitted 

Waive 

$100 deposit for this permit 

performance bond 

street use application fee 

Require 

certificate of insurance 

signed release of liability 

payment of any/all ‘non in-kind’ charges within 20 days of invoice date 

Aquafest Committee sign off on the Traffic Control Plan (TCP) to insure the plan will be 

followed 

Absorb 

City's in-kind services and not bill the responsible organization 

19



City of Rice Lake
Street Use Permit Application

LAKI
WtU;'OiS-.StN

Form
S-Street Use

Receipt*

Permit #

This completed form and required attachments) shall be submitted at the time of application to:
City Clerk's Office, 30 East Eau Claire Street, Rice Lake, Wl 54868

Phone: 715.234.7088 Fax: 715.234.6829 Email; kmorse(®ricelake(3Qy,orci

Deposit - $100 - required for event in which a major activity is the sale or promotion of commercial products or services
(Demonstrafes the applicant's good faith and his/her agreement to pay, v/ithln 20 days of invoicing, all City costs incurred by the occasion of
the event)

Fee - $50.00 - less than three (3) blocks $100.00 - more than three (3) blocks
$25.00 - late fee if received less than 30 days prior to event
(The Common Council may waive the fee for organizations which are non-profit as determined by (he United States Internal Revenue

Service. A tax identification number shall be furnished by all non-profit organizations)

Certificate of Insurance - The applicant shall provide a certificate of comprehensive general liability insurance with per
occurrence/aggregate limits of $300,000 from an insurance carrier which is rated at least A by Moody's. The certificate shall name the
City as an additional insured.

(The Common Council may waive the certificate of insurance requirement)

Performance Bond - The applicant shall provide a performance bond prior to issuance of the permit.
(The Common Council may waive the performance bond requirement)

Petition - A petition signed by not less than 75% of the persons responsible for a water utility account which is located along that
portion of the street designated for the proposed use - (A petition fornn is attached to this application-copies may be made.)

(The Common Council may waive the petition requirement)

Indemnification - By signing this application, the applicant hereby indemnifies, defends, and hold the City of Rice Lake and its
employees and agents harmless against all claims, liability loss, damage or expense incurred by the City on account of any injury to or
death of any person or any damage to property caused by or resulting from the activities for which the permit is granted.

Council Meetind Attendance - Applicant or its representative must be present at the Common Council meeting in which this application
shall be considered. Applicant shall be prepared to provide additional information which is reasonably necessary to make a fair
determination as to whether to grant or deny this application.

Other Licenses/PgrmiJt§ The City of Rice Lake has alcohol, bartender, transienVpublic entertainment and other specialty license
and/or permit applications not included within this form. Contact the Clerk's Office for more information.

To the best of the applicant's knowledge and belief, the Information on this application is true, correct and complete. The applicant agrees to comply with all

appropriate Wisconsin State Statutes and City of Rice Lake Ordinances relating to the permit. (The City of Rice Lake Code of Ordinances is available for
review at the City Clerk's Office, 30 East Eau Claire Street, Rice Lake, Wl 54868 and on the City's official website: wwv.'.ci.rice-lake.wl.us.)

PART A- Required Information

W41. Street requested toj3<t blocked off:
from U*€.c8^^t€^' ^tresit/Avenue

)vesfre<e^ebiocke?F5ff:
to b^oJkr

Time requested the^hpve sfre*eM}e blo_ckea-off:

' ^a)^rom^^^^^^^D;m. toJ^nv(L-^'MS? a.n<0>. S^ Date^^l^

ri'qklcini _,; ,w2. Street requested to be blocked off:
from^66 Or\^u)s^

Time requested the abyye street be blocked off:
from C6\<^ <^n

feet/Avenue

to

to J^ree^A'ivenue

.m. A>;00 Dat*Jyn&-4'

3. Street requested to be blocked off:
from

Street/Avenue
_StreeVAvenue to. Street/Avenue

Time requested the above street be blocked off:
from A a.nWp.rru

Purpose of Street Closure: ii\yr ^-^S-l-lVo^ tS'Sjiixb
Date:

May2013

20



Required map of the area designating the street use permit is attached. Yes jt-^^ No Li
Certificate of Insurance Attached Yes D No \^^~ Waiver requested Yes L No^-""

Performance Bond Attached Yes D No r^-^~ Waiver requested Yes L No^l"'"'

Petition Attached Yes^^'NoD Waiver requested Yes C No

PART B - Required Applicant Information

ApplicfSr^/Organizatipn Nappe , f\ ^\

. I'd K&l^ ^qu£L^-^6^
0

Social Security Number (required for individuals/sole

proprigtorshlp)

Title or Type of entity, indivjd^l, corp., LLC, etc.

G^mjtni-l^ "4^5+-n
Federal Employer or Tax Exempt Identification #

Responsible Person/Agent: -^ i n ?1 ' "\^l.r-\ »L....\ f J^^in./t'Wisconsin Seller's Permit #^7aK^en^ -& (lhour ->^<^M^ ^^^^.n^e^^ ^
V-o- 6c^ <^o^Address Phone

U^.b^T "^fW
lewso^'^-^
IZ^oh^T
fiT6~^l-(cw

City/^e/Zip

JUL
Business Address (if different than license address) Tpn4^^^ei9^i'cot.

l^hnnanS-SLLp^ cJuQb o-^W+uu/.^
City/State/Zip

Appftant's SiflliBt1^ (61 gn in,,f0f|t of a|Nt|j:ary)

^)fVl\lHMl
VV^VJ'"--'

Date

^.y

STATE OF WISCONSIN )

BArc\c%Y^).PJIciDh^
I-—- > \^)w-\.t~'-\ I ' ~ _^ being first duly sworn on oath says that (s)he is the person who made and signed the this

application for a street use permit and that^ll^the statements made by the applicant is true.

Subs^bed and sworn to before me this ^8 day of F'^OC'LLQ.V^ _, 2o3»5 DeborahSfaby

^^^J^H- — J .,..»__S?^%£n
Notary Public, —^(W&1^ —Lc°unty, wis. My Commission Expjres'^/20/2026

IPARTC-City

Application Review by:

Review of Application

Date:_

- (to be completed by City)

Describe each permit incomplete issue(s):

Police Chief Date Fire Chief Date

Community Services Date Community Development Date

May2013

City of Rice Lake

21



City of Rice Lake
Petition for Street Use Permit

J=AK?
WISCONSIN

We, the undersigned residents of the #_ block of

hereby consent to the recreational or business use of this street on>

^QOJU^ ©/p,^. ,and 5^«^(^k"
l»Vo^

2t[gsyAvenue in the City of Rice Lake

OtJL^*^ -0^ , 2CV2^ between the hours of

Ca.rrp/p.m.

Jrmmnur

a.m./^TTy for the purpose of

and do hereby petition the City of Rice Lake Common Council

to grant a Street Use Permit for use of the our portion of the above street for this purpose. We do hereby agree to abide

by such conditions of such use as the City of Rice Lake Common Council §hall attach to th^ granting of the requested ^ y/ J

6 r\ a^ 6 (i%J 4^ / €)^^NNts,i^_h .^^^httuln/.^cw^ftr
Street Use Permit. We designate

shall sign an application for a Street Use Permit on our behalf,
.^-7--

as the responsible person or persons who

Signature S ~C-^ Vj.'^&^
Address ^ ^ 0

^&uT^ /V\fi-ftJ
Date Signed

^-/^-^o^

SSW^Jw^ Address/,

Ts.iUzuvi St.
Dafe^Sisn'

?Z02S
Signatn^'l Address ^ c>. m^ ^

atsSLqned / „ . _SSUms
AddreTf^.wuuiSr-

Date Signed

c37S'! (^0^
Date Signed * ,.„

~fi' . ^ ^ ~\

A,\ ^,'S^C^Si iUAi^iJ^
(" ! . - ;

'^""> M(!^ '•^dr

Signature . J
•=!^<xcn <-•{)1^1-^LA

W^'fL
t^ob.

Addrpss

£L_s_J4^mAA- •z /z 3/0?^ r

n^_
Addrps

rC?(\\ K\0,_^'^-
Data'Signed

.^0^
Signature.-/

:^^
Address

•7 S^-)M. /^'

Date Signed' '

2 /Z3"/^<

Signature Address Date Signed

Signature Address Date Signed

Signature Address Date Signed

Signature Address Date Signed

List below are those resident not signing and/or oppose the Street Use Permit

Signature

Signature

Signature

Address

Address

Address

Date Signed

Date Signed

Date Signed

Jan2013

22



n^sp

LAKESHORE OR

IAK£SW%0^

BUNOY AVE

^ §
^ r!
s 3ti
>ti

23



Memo To:  Mayor and Council 
From:  City Clerk-Treasurer Kessler Item 4-g
Date:  March 20, 2025 

Subject:  Regular Full-Time FLSA-Exempt Deputy Clerk-Treasurer Compensation & Benefits 

Issue:   
Per the Personnel Policies, the FLSA-exempt Deputy Clerk-Treasurer appointment is made by the 
Common Council. 

Background: 
In December 2024, Julie Kessler was hired as the City Clerk-Treasurer leaving the Deputy position 
open and on January28, 2025, the Common Council authorized filling the position at a $32.18/hr 
orientation wage. 

The position was advertised internally and externally simultaneously and 19 applications were received 
by the February 28, 2025 deadline.  Four (4) candidates were selected for interviews, Excel testing & 
an analytical writing assessment.  Based on the results shown below, it is recommended that the 
Common Council appoint Shannon Ullom (candidate A). 

Criteria Possible 
Points 

A B C D 

Application 
Rating 

35 35 30 25 30 

Interview 
Average 

160 80 78 67 68 

Excel Test 50 25 10 10 10 

Writing 
Test 

15 15 15 15 15 

Total 
Score 

260 155 133 117 118 

Options 
1. To appoint Shannon Ullom to the FLSA-exempt Deputy Clerk-Treasurer position; with a starting

wage of $32.18/hour as the orientation wage as previously approved; and require the functional
physical assessment, background check and drug/alcohol testing.

2. To offer Shannon Ullom the FLSA-exempt Deputy Clerk-Treasurer position; (insert counter
proposal) and require the functional physical assessment, background check and drug/alcohol
testing.

3. If the 1st ranked candidate does not work out or opts not to accept the position, to appoint the
2nd ranked candidate to the FLSA-exempt Deputy Clerk-Treasurer position; approve
$32.18/hour as the orientation wage; and require the functional physical assessment,
background check and drug/alcohol testing.

4. To take any other action Council desires.

Recommendation 
5. Option 1 & 3 - To appoint Shannon Ullom to the FLSA-exempt Deputy Clerk-Treasurer position;

with a starting wage of $32.18/hour as the orientation wage as previously approved; and require
the functional physical assessment, background check and drug/alcohol testing.

24



2025 Employment Agreement 
This Agreement made by and between the City of Rice Lake, hereafter referred to as CITY, and 

Shannon Ullom, hereinafter referred to as a regular full-time EMPLOYEE.  It is the intent and purpose 
of the parties hereto that this Agreement shall promote good working conditions between the CITY and 
EMPLOYEE, and to set forth terms and conditions of employment to be observed by the parties hereto. 

I. Equal Employment Opportunity - The CITY agrees that there shall be no discrimination by the
CITY against the EMPLOYEE covered by this Agreement, per the CITY's Personnel Policies Equal
Employment Opportunity policy.

II. Referenced Personnel Policies - The CITY's Personnel Policies, dated November 10, 2020,
including Employment, Conduct, and Compensation & Benefits, are incorporated by reference as if fully
set out herein, except as specifically noted within this document.  The EMPLOYEE and the CITY
specifically recognize that amendments and/or changes to the CITY's Personnel Policies adopted post-
execution will not affect this Agreement.  Amendments or changes may be incorporated by reference
into future agreements or into this Agreement under Section V. Modification of Agreement.

III. Duration and Termination of Agreement.  This Agreement shall continue in full force in effect
from April   , 2025 until replaced by a successor agreement.

IV. Duties - The duties of the EMPLOYEE shall be as outlined in the Common Council approved job
description, related functions, applicable Code of City Ordinances, and applicable State Statutes, and
incorporated by reference as if fully set out herein.

V. Modification of Agreement - This Agreement will constitute the entire agreement between the
CITY and EMPLOYEE and shall not be modified in any manner except by an instrument in writing
executed by the parties thereto or by their respective successors or interested parties.

VI. Subordination and Severability - The Agreement shall be construed under the laws of the State
of Wisconsin.  Any covenant, condition, provision herein that is held to be invalid by a court of competent
jurisdiction shall be considered deleted from this agreement, but such deletion shall in no way affect
any other covenant, condition, or provision herein contained so long such deletion does not materially
prejudice CITY or EMPLOYEE in their respective right and obligations contained in the valid covenants,
conditions, or provisions in this agreement.

VII. Compensation - The EMPLOYEE and CITY recognize that annually, the CITY will adopt a base
wage and salary schedule.  This schedule will include base wages and salaries determined by the
collective bargaining process.  The base wages and salaries for all positions not covered by a collective
bargaining process will be shown in the annual schedule to be adjusted by the cost-of-living adjustment
adopted by the CITY.

April  , 2025 base wage for the EMPLOYEE is $32.18/hour (orientation wage) (plus 2025 COLA) 

VIII. Personnel Policies Exceptions - The CITY and EMPLOYEE agree that the following City
Personnel Policies are excluded from this Agreement and the modified issue as described shall prevail
– none.

IX. Additional Agreement Terms and Conditions
a. Education.  EMPLOYEE shall be encouraged to attend, at the City’s expense, the UW-Green
Bay Municipal Clerks and/or Treasurers Institute and any other training as assigned by the City
Clerk-Treasurer.

b. Compensation Exceptions.  EMPLOYEE is considered exempt from the Federal Labor

25



Standards Act (FLSA). 

c. Residency.  EMPLOYEE shall not be required to maintain primary residence within the
corporate limits of the City of Rice Lake.

This Agreement is entered into on the ____ day of _______ 2025. 

CITY OF RICE LAKE EMPLOYEE 

_______________________________ _______________________________ 
Harlan Dodge, Mayor  Shannon Ullom, Deputy Clerk-Treasurer 

________________________________ 
Julie A. Kessler, WCMC 
City Clerk-Treasurer 

26



 Item 4h 
TO:  Mayor and Common Council 
FROM:   RLU General Manager Aaby, Consulting Engineer Van Gilder, and Community 
Services Director Anderson 
FOR:      Council Meeting of March 25, 2025 
Subject: Set April 22, 2025 as the Public Hearing date for the 2025 Ann and Lee Street Project 
& Resolution 25-09, A Preliminary Resolution Declaring Intent to Levy Special Assessments

Under Municipal Police Power Pursuant to Wisconsin Statutes 66.0703 

A. Background:
During the summer of 2025 Rice Lake Utilities is planning to replace sewer mains, water mains,
and utility services on Ann Street west of Main Street and Lee Street between Wisconsin
Avenue and Gessell Avenue.

During its regular meeting of February 13, 2025, Rice Lake Utilities approved a “Supplemental 
Letter Agreement” (SLA) with its engineering consultant, SEH, for the design of the 
improvements, preparation of an engineering report for the levying of special assessments, etc. 

The project is being conducted with cooperation between the City General (CSD Department) 
and Rice Lake Utilities, with RLU taking the lead on the project administration. The City has 
budgeted for asphalt replacement on Ann Street and will contribute the asphalt paving costs for 
the project, up to the amount budgeted in the CIP.  Accordingly, the remainder of the project 
costs will be funded by RLU and special assessments to the benefitting property owners.   

An illustration of the project’s scope is shown in Figure 1 and Figure 2. 

Figure 1 – Ann Street Concept Plan 

27



Figure 2 – Lee Street Concept Plan 

The planned utility upgrades include replacing the undersized watermains with 8-inch ductile 
iron water mains, as well as replacing the existing sanitary sewer mains on both Ann Street and 
Lee Street.  Utility improvements also include the installation of new hydrants and water valves 
on both streets, along with replacement of the existing water and sewer service piping up to the 
street right-of-way on both streets. Roadway repairs will consist of replacement of affected curb, 
sidewalk and pavement surfaces, including full width pavement on Ann Street.    

B. Issue:

The task before the Council is to consider, as a part of the consent agenda, (1) adopting

“Resolution 25-09, a Preliminary Resolution Declaring Intent to Levy Special Assessments

Under Municipal Police Power Pursuant to Wisconsin Statute §66.0703” and (2) setting April 22,

2025, to conduct a public hearing regarding the proposed assessments.

C. Analysis:
The Council must adopt Resolution 25-09 (included as Attachment 1) for the special
assessment process to begin. In addition, the Council is being asked to set April 22, 2025, as
the date for the statutorily required public hearing. Figure 3 contains a partial project schedule of
key events for this project.  The schedule shown in Figure 3 indicates that there will be two
“public information meetings” (PIM’s) in addition to the public hearing before the Council. The
PIM’s are not required by State statutes; rather, are a provision of the City’s “Special
Assessment Policy” dated March 9, 2010.

28



Figure 3 

Ann Street and Lee Street 
Partial Project Schedule 

Public Information Meeting (PIM) #1  March 25, 2025   5:00 PM 
Adoption of preliminary special assessment resolution  March 25, 2025 
Public Information Meeting (PIM) #2  April 8, 2025   5:00 PM 
Publication of legal notice of Public Hearing  April 9, 2025 
Engineering Report prepared and delivered to Clerk  April 10, 2025 
Mail Hearing Notice and Special Assessment Estimates April 11, 2025 
to affected property owners 
First Advertisement for Bids April 16, 2025 
Special Assessment Public Hearing, followed by  
Authorization of Final Special Assessment Resolution April 22, 2025 
Second Advertisement for Bids April 23, 2025 
Bid Opening May 6, 2025 
RLU consideration of Contract Award May 8, 2025 

D. Options:
A. As a part of the consent agenda:

(1) Adopt Resolution 25-09, a Preliminary Resolution Declaring Intent to Levy Special
Assessments under Municipal Police Power Pursuant to Wisconsin Statute
§66.0703; and

(2) Set April 22, 2025, to Conduct a Public Hearing regarding the Proposed
Assessments

B. Move this issue from the "consent" portion of the agenda to "consideration" to permit
deliberation by the Council.

C. Any other lawful action desired by Council.

E. Recommendation:
It is recommended that the Council adopt Option A.

29



RESOLUTION 25-0\9 
A PRELIMINARY RESOLUTION DECLARING INTENT TO LEVY SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS UNDER 

MUNICIPAL POLICE POWER PURSUANT TO §66.0703, STATS. 

BE IT RESOLVED, by the Common Council of the City of Rice Lake, Wisconsin: 

1. The Common Council hereby declares its intention to exercise its police power under §66.0703, Stats., to
levy special assessments upon property in the assessment district hereafter described for benefits
conferred upon such property by reason of the following public work and improvements:

Reconstruction of A n n  Street, including municipal water and sanitarysewer facilities, from its 
intersection with Main Street to the west terminus. 

Reconstruction of L e e  Street, including municipal water and sanitary sewer facilities, from its 
intersection with Wisconsin Avenue to its intersection with Gessell Avenue. 

2. The property to be assessed lies within the following described assessment district:

All property fronting upon both sides of A n n  S t r e e t  from its intersection with M a i n  
S t r e e t  to its west terminus. 

All property fronting upon both sides of L e e  Street from its intersection with W i s c o n s i n  
A v e n u e  to its intersection with Gessell Avenue. 

3. The total amount assessed against the properties in the described assessment district shall not exceed the
cost of the improvements.

4. The Common Council determines that the improvements constitute an exercise of the police power for the
health, safety and general welfare of the City of Rice Lake and its inhabitants.

5. The municipal engineering consultant, SEH, shall prepare a report which shall consist of:

a. Plans and specifications for the improvements.
b. An estimate of the entire cost of the proposed improvements.
c. Schedule of proposed assessments.

For this project, it is anticipated that costs will be assessed to adjacent property owners in accordance with 
the City's Special Assessment Policies dated March 9, 2010, for the replacement of water and sanitary 
sewer laterals, half the cost to replace water mains less than six inches in diameter, associated sidewalks, 
and prorated engineering fees, with final determination according to the Engineering Report and Final 
Resolution. 

6. When the report is completed, the city engineer shall file a copy of the report with the city clerk for public
inspection and, if state property is to be assessed, shall mail a copy of the report to the responsible state
agency and, for assessments of $50,000 or more, to the Wisconsin state building commission.

7. Upon receiving the report of the city engineer, the clerk shall cause notice to be given stating the nature of
the proposed improvements, the general boundary lines of the proposed assessment district, (including a
small map thereof,) the time and place at which the report may be inspected, and the time and place of the
public hearing on the matters contained in the preliminary resolution and the report. This notice shall be
published as a Class 1 notice under Wis. Stat. Chapter 985, and a copy shall be mailed, at least 10 days
before the hearing, to every interested party whose address is known or can be ascertained with
reasonable diligence.

Attachment 1 

30



8. The hearing shall be held in the City of Rice Lake Council Chambers at the following address: 30 East Eau
Claire Street, Rice Lake, WI 54868, at a time set by the clerk in accordance with §66.0703, Stats.

9. The assessment against any parcel may be paid in cash or in annual installments in accordance with the
City’s Special Assessment Policies dated March 9, 2010.

Passed this 25th day of 

March 2025.  

City of Rice Lake 

By:  Harlan Dodge, Mayor 

Attest:  Julie Kessler, City Clerk/Treasurer 

31



WHEREAS, former Miharu Mayor Hiroshi Itoh, an enthusiastic advocate for cross cultural 
understanding and international friendships led a large delegation from Miharu in August of 1987 
(including Obon dancers and Taiko drummers) to initiate our first homestays and join in the Rice Lake 
Centennial parade before signing the sister city charter together with then Rice Lake Mayor Al Arnold 
on August 21, 1987, and 

WHEREAS, Itoh-san led a delegation from Miharu to Washington DC in 1990 when our sister cities 
were honored with the Sister Cities International Award for Best Youth Exchange Program (the first of 
many SCI national awards over the years.) and 

WHEREAS, Itoh-san championed the building of Japan’s 1st American-style Bed and Breakfast:  The 
Rice Lake International House on Miharu’s Main Street, expediting ½ million yen to purchase and ship 
the construction materials and furnishings from Barron County and in the fall of 1992 sent a planning 
delegation to work on the design with Rice Lake craftsmen and in January 1993 welcomed Milo and 
Elaine Schieffer who helped oversee the American-style construction, which opened in April 1993, and 

WHEREAS, Itoh-san personally commissioned the Japanese Friendship Garden to be built in 1997 to 
honor our 10th Anniversary as sister cities, sent 3 master gardeners and construction engineers to 
design and oversee hundreds of community volunteers in constructing the 35’ x 40’ garden next to the 
library on the UW campus, and encouraged on-going visits from Miharu friends to teach and assist in 
garden maintenance, and 

WHEREAS, Itoh-san was tireless and unfailing in his friendship to many Rice Lake citizens and 
delegates visiting Miharu, even long after his retirement from city office and into his 90’s, and 

WHEREAS, for years Itoh-san doggedly read the news from Rice Lake by weekly poring over each 
issue of the Chronotype while enjoying a cup of coffee at the Rice Lake International House in Miharu, 
and 

WHEREAS, former Mayor Itoh has been a gracious host welcoming many visitors over the year, his 
legacy and commitment to friendship will stand as an example and model for many years to come of 
enduring friendship between Miharu Town and the City of Rice Lake.  

NOW THEREFORE, I, Harlan Dodge, Mayor of the City of Rice Lake, do hereby proclaim this in 
remembrance of former Mayor of Miharu Hiroshi Itoh. 

Signed this 20th day of March 2025 

CITY OF RICE LAKE 

________________________ 

Harlan E. Dodge, Mayor 

Mayoral Proclamation

In Remembrance of Miharu 
Hiroshi Itoh

32



Memo To:  PNC 
From:  City Clerk Treasurer Kessler 
Date:  March 20, 2025 
Subject:  2025 Cost of Living Adjustment – Non-Represented Employees 

Issue 
The non-represented 2025 cost of living adjustment (COLA) is submitted for PNC 
consideration. 

Background 
For the past 20+ years, the annual COLA for non-represented employees has been 
presented within each departmental budget during the October budget process and 
included in Appendix B, Expenditure Object Code.  A 3% ‘default’ rate was used as the 
January 1, 2025 COLA in the original 2025 budget and during the budget process. 

Even though Department Heads include a 3% ‘default’ COLA in their budget worksheets 
for non-union employees, by approving the budget document, the Common Council 
does not automatically appropriate COLA adjustments for those employees without 
employment agreements.  The Common Council’s annual appropriation is required 
through a separate action outside of the budget process.  Historical increases are 
shown in Table 1 below. 

Table 1 

Date Police Union Fire Union Non-Rep 

01.01.2013 0 0 0 

08.17.2013 3.5% 1% 0% 

01.01.2014 1% 1% 1% 

07.01.2014 1% 1% 1% 

01.01.2015 1% 1% 1% 

07.01.2015 1% 1% 1% 

01.01.2016 1% 1% 1% 

01.01.2017 2% 2% 2% 

01.01.2018 3% 3% 3% 

01.01.2019 1% 1% 2% 

01.01.2020 1% 1% 1% 

01.01.2021 1% 2% 2% 

01.01.2022 2% 2% 2% 

01.01.2023 2% 2.5% 3% 

01.01.2024 2% 3% 3% 

01.01.2025 3.5% 3.5%/4%/3% 

07.01.2025 3% 

01.01.2026 3.5% 3.5% 

07.01.2026 3% 

Also included in the 2024-2025 contracts are increases to longevity, shown in Table 2. 

33



Table 2 

Years of 
Completed 

Service 

Old Police 
& Fire 

Contracts 

2025-2026 
Contracts 

Personnel 
Handbook 

4 1% 4% 1% 

7 2% 5% 2% 

10 3% 6% 3% 

13 4% 7% 4% 

16 5% 8% 5% 

Decisions to be made 

• Should the new employment agreements be for 2025 or 2025-2026?

• What should the COLA be, and effective date?

• What should the longevity increases be?

With direction on these decisions, I will plan to have the employment agreements on the 
April 8, 2025 Council Agenda. 

34



Future Council Agenda Topics 4.08.25 4.15.25

(2) PUBLIC APPEARANCES
(3) PUBLIC HEARING (topic presentation, citizens for, citizens against,
council action)
(4) CONSENT

(5) CONSIDERATION

(6) REPORTS/COMMENTS

(7) CLOSED SESSION 19.85
(8) OPEN SESSION

Finance Meeting - April 8 @ 6:30 pm (Council/Lakeshore Rooms)

PNC Meeting -  April 22 @ ?? pm (Council/Lakeshore Rooms)

4.22.25 5.13.25 5.27.25
7:00 PM 7:00 PM

Regular Regular Regular

Clerk Clerk Clerk
Clerk Clerk Clerk

Bills
County Library Tax Exeption

RLU

SEH/RLU
SEH/RLU

7:00 PM7:00 PM 5:00 PM

Regular ReOrg

Minutes Clerk Clerk

Licenses Clerk

Bills Clerk

Clerk

Ord 25-02 A Lead & Galvanized Private Service Line Replacement Ord. RLU

Adoption of Street Development Concept Plan CS

Res 25-08 Preliminary Special Assessment Resolution SEH/RLU

Set Public Hearing for April 22 2025 Ann and Lee Street Projects SEH/RLU

Employment Agreements Clerk

Public Hearing for Special Assessments

Res 25-09 Final Special Assessment Resolution

Mayor/Council Comments-items not for discussion 6a

#4 - Minutes (Clerk)

#5 - Bills (Clerk)

#3 - Minutes (Clerk)

Excused

35


	March 25, 2025 Agenda
	March 11, 2025 Draft Minutes
	Acceptance of parcel 276-8004-05-000
	Authorization to Replace the Vacant Recreation Coordinator/Administrative Assistant Position
	Resolution 25-08 World Migratory Bird Day
	Street Closure Request - Aquafest
	Appointment of Deputy Clerk-Treasurer
	Resolution 25-09 Levying Special Assessments and Set Public Hearing date
	Mayoral Proclamation
	2025 COLA Adjustments
	Future Ageda Topics



